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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Litterer Laboratory is a three-story red and buff brick building set

on a base of rock-faced stone. The building is comprised of two main sections,

a rectangular block facing Second Avenue which housed labs and classrooms of

the Vanderbilt Medical School, and a large polygonal projection at the rear
housing two amphitheaters fordissections and large lectures. At the center of
the Second Avenue facade is a slightly projecting tower over the main entrance
which rises a half story above the building's third story. The corner stone
bears two dates: 1850, the year the University of Nashville founded the city's
first medical schoo], and 1895, the year of the building's construction. The
building, until recently, was dwned by a plumbing supply company, which ehlarged
the three first floor windows to the right of the entrance by lowering the sills.
The company was also responsible for painting the first floor facade with signs.
The building has recently been sold, and the new owners plan “a careful cleaning.

Buff brick, contrasting with the red, is the main source of decorative
detail, most of which is concentrated on the classroom block. The buff brick
forms quoins at the corners of the building and the tower, and decorative panels
between the second and third story windows and above the third story. A simple
metal cornice crowns the building with the exception of the tower which has
projecting eaves. A stone string course runs between the first and second floor
on the classroom block. Paired stone Tuscan columns supporting an entablature
decorate the main entrance.

Though smaller in scale, the building, particularly the classroom block,
bears earmarks of the Chicago commercial style. The arched windows, simple wall
treatment, and modest cornice impart the feeling of the commercial style in spite
of the isolated classical details. A simple and straight forward approach is
evident on the interior as well. Woodwork (door and window facings and stairways)
is very simple. The walls are exposed red brick. On the first floor, glazed
white brick is employed up to chair-rail height, and a terra cotta egg and dart
molding provides a decorative touch at the ceiling. The whole is a direct and
functional approach to a college laboratory and classroom building with simple
yet elegant detailing.
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The Rutledge Hill area, lying several blocks south of downtown Nashville, -
was, during the nineteenth century, a center of higher education, as well as one
of the city's most prestigious residential suburbs. The present Vanderbilt
University and George Peabody College had their beginnings on Rutledge Hill as
did Montgomery Bell Academy, a secondary school for young men. The University of
Nashville, which no longer exists per se, was also located on Rutledge Hill. It
was established by the North Carolina Legislature in 1785, before Tennessee had
become a state. The Litterer Laboratory Building, once part of the Vanderbilt
University Medical School, is one of only two buildings left of the Rutledge Hill
educational complex.

In 1850 the University of Nashville established a medical school. Several
years later the newly reorganized Vanderbilt University sought to establish a
medical school as well. An agreement was made with the University of Nashville
in 1874 under which the two universities shared the same medical department. The
arrangement continued until 1895 when Vanderbilt broke away to form its own school.
Shortly thereafter, the University of Nashville built the Litterer Laboratory
building. In 1915, William Litterer, for whom the building was subsequently named,
bought the laboratory and gave it to Vanderbilt, which continued to use the build-
ing until 1925 when its medical school was moved to the University's West Nashville
campus.

William Litterer, a wealthy businessman, was born in Germany and had come to
Nashville in 1855. His business interests were diverse, including a river steam-
boat operation, a Wholesale drug business, the presidency of Nashville Milling Co.
and interests in banking and the Cumberland Telephone Company. He was also active
in Nashville politics, serving on the Board of Aldermen and the City Council. In
1891 he was elected to serve out the term of Mayor C. P. McGarver who had resigned.

The Litterer Laboratory's significance lies in its historical associations and,
to a degree, in its architecture. The building is the only structure associated
with William Litterer standing in Nashville and one of only two buildings left of
the considerable educational complex which once stood on Rutledge Hill. Architecturally,
the building's functional simplicity is significant in that such design was rarely
seen in Nashville in the late nineteenth century.
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